
  
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 17, 2021 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS BOARD ROOM 

 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

5:30 1 CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2 APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

August 3, 2021, Regular Meeting  
August 3, 2021, Closed Session 

 1 

 3 APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 17, 2021, AGENDA  9 
5:35 4 PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE 

CONSIDERATION OF SUBMITTING A GRANT APPLICATION FOR 
BUILDING REUSE FUNDS FROM THE NC DEPARTMENT OF 
COMMERCE TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO LOAN TO “PROJECT 
CHECKOUT” 

MR. JOE FURMAN 11 

5:40 5 CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE MS. JENNIFER GREENE 13 
5:45 6 STATE OF EMERGENCY (SOE) DISCUSSION  MR. DERON GEOUQUE 15 
5:50 7 WATER STREET PARKING PRESENTATION MR. BILL DIXON 19 
5:55 8 PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER # 3 FOR MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY MR. JOE FURMAN 23 
6:00 9 MAINTENANCE MATTERS 

A. Recognition of Steven Moody’s Award of the Order of 
the Long Leaf Pine Award 

B. Tractor Bid Award Request 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
25 

 
31 

6:05 10 ADDITIONAL AND REVISED ALLOCATION OF FY 21 HOME & 
COMMUNITY CARE BLOCK GRANT (H&CCBG) FUNDS 

MS. ANGIE BOITNOTTE 39 

6:10 11 TAX MONTHLY COLLECTIONS REPORT MR. LARRY WARREN 43 
6:15 12 BUDGET AMENDMENTS MS. MISTY WATSON 45 
6:20 13 MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A. Watauga County Broadband Initiative 
B. Boards and Commissions 
C. Announcements  

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
47 
65 
67 

6:25 14 PUBLIC COMMENT  69 
7:25 15 BREAK  69 
7:30 16 CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

 69 

7:45 17 ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
August 3, 2021, Regular Meeting  
August 3, 2021, Closed Session 
 
 
 

  

081721 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, AUGUST 3, 2021 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
August 3, 2021, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room located in the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
Chairman Welch called the meeting to order at 5:33 P.M.  The following were present: 
 

PRESENT:  John Welch, Chairman 
   Billy Kennedy, Vice-Chairman 
   Carrington Pertalion, Commissioner 
   Larry Turnbow, Commissioner 

Charlie Wallin, Commissioner 
Anthony di Santi, County Attorney 
Deron Geouque, County Manager 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

 
Chairman Welch opened with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Kennedy led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Commissioner Wallin joined the meeting upon arrival at 5:37 P.M. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the June 20, 2021, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 

Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the 
July 20, 2021, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Welch, Kennedy, Pertalion, Turnbow) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Wallin) 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the 
July 20, 2021, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Welch, Kennedy, Pertalion, Turnbow) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Wallin) 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Welch called for additions and/or corrections to the August 3, 2021, agenda. 
 

DRAFT 

081721 BCC Meeting

2



Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to approve the 
August 3, 2021, agenda as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Welch, Kennedy, Pertalion, Turnbow) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Wallin) 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE  
Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, provided an update on the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19).  The report was for information only and, therefore, no action was required. 

WATAUGA COUNTY BROADBAND INITIATIVE  
Mr. Brad Shields with Blue Ridge Energy and Mr. Robbie Farmer, Mr. Brantley Davis, and Mr. 
Jody Barnes with SkyLine/SkyBest were present to address underserved areas of the County 
regarding broadband services.  Several areas of the County were identified as underserved with 
broadband services through citizen contacts, petitions, surveys, and Federal and State data.  The 
current COVID-19 pandemic amplified the lack of broadband services in areas throughout the 
County with remote education and citizens working from home. The goal was to close the digital 
divide in the County and allow access to digital commerce, telehealth, online education, and digital 
media for the citizens. 
 
The following proposal would build approximately seventy-five (75) miles of trunk fiber by Blue 
Ridge Energy and SkyLine/SkyBest to provide seventy-eight (78) miles of distribution fiber for 
approximately 1,565 homes to access.  The project would consist of four phases and be constructed 
over a two and half (2.5) year process.  The four phases would be as followed: 
 

• Phase 1 – Triplett/Powder Horn - would provide the largest amount of access to homes 
(503) and territory with 29 miles of fiber built. 

• Phase 2 – Wildcat/Stoney Fork – access for 310 homes with 20 miles of fiber built. 
• Phase 3 – Blackberry/Sampson -access for 252 homes with 16 miles of fiber built.   
• Phase 4 – Howard’s Creek/Ray Brown/Raven Rock – access for 500 homes with 10 

miles of fiber built. 
 
The project would utilize American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) funds with the estimated cost 
being $7 million dollars.  The County received a total of $10,911,724.00 in ARP funding.   
 
A small amount of funding has been utilized to cover unbudgeted COVID-19 expenses related to 
the County’s detention facility.  County staff continued to review and develop projects for ARP 
funding.  Broadband was one of the projects that had been identified as high priority, especially in 
lieu of the pandemic and the need for remote learning and work.  The project would increase the 
footprint of broadband services, address several of the underserved areas, and lay the groundwork 
for future expansion.  An additional benefit of the project was that staff had requested a set-aside 
of fiber for future County buildings, emergency communication towers and/or equipment located 
along the expansion. 

081721 BCC Meeting

3



Chairman Welch tabled consideration until the August 17, 2021, Board meeting to allow for staff 
to work with Blue Ridge Energy and SkyLine/SkyBest to develop a contract for the project to 
ensure compliance with ARP funding guidance. 

OASIS FUNDING REQUEST 
Ms. Michelle Grit and Ms. Jennifer Kearse with OASIS gave an update on their services and how 
they had been affected by the COVID-19 pandemic.  In an effort to free up reoccurring expenses 
that could be used to cover funds lost due to not being able to hold annual fundraisers in light of 
the pandemic, Ms. Grit requested a one-time $50,000 allocation from the County to pay off their 
remaining $75,000 mortgage.  The remaining $25,000 would be raised by OASIS through 
corporate sponsors and fundraising.  The $50,000 was requested to be allocated from the American 
Rescue Plan funds received by the County.  With mortgage costs gone, those monthly funds could 
be expended for additional services. 
 
Chairman Welch tabled consideration of the request until staff completed and prioritized the list 
of projects to potentially receive ARP funding to determine if there were funds available. 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION DESIGNATING APPALCART AS THE RECIPIENT OF THE 
FUNDING FOR RURAL PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION IN WATAUGA COUNTY 
Mr. Craig Hughes, AppalCART Director, presented a proposed resolution authorizing the filing 
of funding applications with the North Carolina Department of Transportation and the execution 
of the designee certification form. 
 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to adopt the enclosed 
resolution authorizing the filing of applications with the North Carolina Department of 
Transportation and the execution of the designee certification form. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED KILL CHILL FACILITY UPDATE AND REQUEST FOR SCOPING AND 
PRELIMINARY ENGINEERING FUNDS 

Mr. Jim Hamilton, Cooperative Extension Director, gave an update on the proposed Kill/Chill 
Facility to be located at the landfill.  Mr. Hamilton requested authorization for the use of up to 
$77,800 from the Golden LEAF funds to begin the preliminary engineering and planning process 
to determine actual project costs. 
 
After discussion, Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to authorize 
the use of up to $77,800 from the Golden LEAF funds to begin the preliminary engineering and 
planning process to determine actual project costs. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

081721 BCC Meeting

4



PROPOSED PURCHASE OF RENEWABLE ENERGY FROM NEW RIVER LIGHT AND 
POWER 
Mr. Ed Miller, General Manager of New River Light and Power (NRLP), presented options for 
the County to purchase 100%, or a portion, of the County’s energy use from hydroelectric facilities.  
NRLP would be entering a new wholesale purchase power agreement beginning in January 2022 
with Carolina Power Partners (CPP).  The new power agreement would reduce the County’s utility 
bill by 14% or approximately $50,000.  The power agreement would also allow the County to 
purchase renewable energy at an increased cost. The premium cost was currently $5.00 for every 
250kwh sold or $0.02/kwh. 
 
The estimate, if the County elected to purchase 100% of their energy from a renewable resource, 
was $34,296 ($88,144 actual cost minus the 14% ($53,818) rate reduction).  However, if the 
County elected to utilize only the proposed 14% savings; 60% of the energy purchased would be 
renewable.  The County could also select any percentage (%) to purchase of renewable energy or 
retain the $53,818 in savings. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to enter an agreement with 
NRLP to purchase 100% of energy from a renewable resource beginning January 2022. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Boards and Commissions  

 

County Manager Geouque presented the following for consideration: 
 
Economic Development Commission 
A term on the Economic Development Commission expired in June.  It was a three-year term.  
Members were eligible to be appointed for two consecutive terms.  Mr. Tim Hodges had served 
both terms and, therefore, was ineligible for reappointment; a new appointee was needed.  County 
Manager Geouque stated that a volunteer application was received from Ms. Virginia Lee Wallace 
who had expressed interest in serving on the EDC.  This was a second reading. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to appoint Ms. Virginia 
Lee Wallace to serve on the Economic Development Commission for a three-year term. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission 
Maria Hyde, the current Chair of the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission (VCHPC) 
has moved, or would soon move, out of Watauga County which requires her replacement. Two 
people had expressed interest in being appointed to replace her. Membership consists of three 
resident property owners of the historic district, and two members of the Valle Crucis Community 

081721 BCC Meeting

5



Council, regardless of whether they live in the historic district.  Mrs. Hyde filled one of the resident 
property owner slots.  Mrs. Rachel Ward who, along with her husband, purchased the Hyde’s 
house was interested in being appointed to the Commission.  Also interested was Mr. Pat Brown, 
who lives in the district along with his wife, Jennifer Stoeber.  Both were qualified for the position 
and these were second readings. 
 
After discussion, Commissioner Pertalion, seconded by Commissioner Turnbow, moved to 
appoint Mr. Pat Brown to serve on the Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
AppalCART Board 
The AppalCART Board recommended reappointing David Jackson, Frank David V, and Joe Eller 
to the AppalCART Board to maintain the continuity of the current Board.  The term would be for 
two years. 
 
Commissioner Pertalion, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to waive the second reading 
and reappoint David Jackson, Frank “Quint” David, V, and Joe Eller to the AppalCART Board. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Local Firefighters Relief Fund Board of Trustees 
Stewart Simmons Fire Chief Doug Berry requested the appointment of Ms. Keron Poteat to the 
Local Firefighters Relief Fund Board of Trustees. 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to waive the second 
reading and appoint Ms. Keron Poteat to the Local Firefighters Relief Fund Board of Trustees. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
B. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

• The 114th North Carolina Association of County Commissioners (NCACC) Annual 
Conference was scheduled for August 12-14, 2021, in New Hanover County.  Visit 
https://www.ncacc.org/events-training/annual-conference/2021-annual-conference/ for 
full information. 

 

• The Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute (CCC&TI) Board of Trustees 
invited the Board of Commissioners to attend the Watauga Student Services Open House 
on Thursday, August 5, 2021 at 5:30 P.M.  The Open House would be held at 372 
Community College Drive, Boone, NC. 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

6

https://www.ncacc.org/events-training/annual-conference/2021-annual-conference/


• Chairman Welch encouraged the support of the Back 2 School Festival scheduled for this 
week. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 7:18 P.M., Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to enter 
Closed Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Economic 
Development, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(4). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Vice-Chairman Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Wallin, moved to resume the open meeting 
at 8:21 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

POSSIBLE ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
 
Commissioner Turnbow, seconded by Vice-Chairman Kennedy, moved to schedule a public 
hearing for 5:30 P.M., on Tuesday, August 17, 2021, to allow public comment on the consideration 
of submitting a grant application for Building Reuse funds from the NC Department of Commerce 
to provide funds to loan to “Project Checkout.” 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

ADJOURN 

Commissioner Wallin, seconded by Commissioner Pertalion, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
8:21 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
John Welch, Vice-Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

081721 BCC Meeting

7



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 17, 2021, AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF 
SUBMITTING A GRANT APPLICATION FOR BUILDING REUSE FUNDS FROM THE NC 
DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE TO PROVIDE FUNDS TO LOAN TO “PROJECT 
CHECKOUT” 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled at 5:30 PM, Tuesday, August 17, 2021 to consider submitting 
a grant application for Building Reuse funds from the NC Department of Commerce. Said grant 
would provide funds to loan to “Project Checkout” to renovate a building, which will facilitate the 
creation of an estimated 40 jobs. The loan will be forgiven if the jobs are created and maintained 
for at least 6 months. A 5% local match is required; the estimated amount is up to $25,000, and 
can be a combination of in-kind (administrative time) and cash. It is proposed that the County 
provide the local match with the Economic Development Capital Reserve Account being the 
source of any cash needed. Comments from the public are welcome.  
 
The public hearing is to allow citizen input on submitting the grant.  Upon closure of the public 
hearing, the Board will need to authorize the submittal of the grant application for Building Reuse 
funds from the NC Department of Commerce.   
 
Board action is requested.   
  

081721 BCC Meeting

11



Public Hearing Notice: Economic Development 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing at 5:30 PM, Tuesday, 
August 17, 2021 to consider submitting a grant application for Building Reuse funds from the 
NC Department of Commerce. Said grant would provide funds to loan to “Project Checkout” to 
renovate a building, which will facilitate creation of an estimated 40 jobs. The loan will be 
forgiven if the jobs are created and maintained for at least 6 months. A 5% local match is 
required; the estimated amount is up to $25,000, and can be a combination of in-kind 
(administrative time) and cash. It is proposed that the County provide the local match with the 
Economic Development Capital Reserve Account being the source of any cash needed.  The 
hearing will be held in the Commissioners Board Room, County Administration Building, 814 
West King Street. Comments from the public are welcome. For further information, please email 
p&i@watgov.org, or call (828)264-3082.  

081721 BCC Meeting

12

mailto:p&i@watgov.org


AGENDA ITEM 5: 

CORONAVIRUS (COVID-19) COMMUNITY UPDATE  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Jennifer Greene, AppHealthCare Director, will provide an update on the Coronavirus 
(COVID-19). 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

STATE OF EMERGENCY (SOE) DISCUSSION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

A draft State of Emergency is attached.  The State of Emergency provides a framework for future 
action, should it be warranted, that may be required to address the evolving conditions associated with 
the COVID-19 Delta and other possible variants.  The State of Emergency follows the same successful 
guidelines and recommendations utilized by the County during the height of the initial pandemic.  
County offices remained opened to the public during the COVID-19 pandemic with just the initial 
shutdown to develop effective measures, protocols, and guidelines to ensure the safety of staff and the 
public while allowing County operations to continue.    
 
County Departments are utilizing the following guidelines and protocols: 
 

Sheriff’s Office  
 

 All detention staff have/are wearing masks due to the congregate environment. 
 Bailiffs are wearing masks in courtrooms.   

 
Social Services 
 

 Masks while in public areas in Human Services Building. 
 Masks when communicating face to face with clients. 
 Clients wearing masks when face to face with employees. 
 One person or family is allowed in the lobby at a time. 
 Limiting client access to DSS areas when possible.  If not possible, staff to meet clients in 

hallways, conference/meeting areas. 
 Employees to avoid congregating in personal offices and meetings between employees to 

take place in areas where social distancing can take place. 
 
The proposed State of Emergency would require seniors to wear masks at both senior centers due to 
the combined risk of age and congregate setting.  At this time, the WCRC would follow the current 
NCDHHS guidelines with staff wearing masks who are in direct contact with the public or in public 
areas of the facility and encouraging patrons to do so as well.  Equipment has been spaced out to 
provide for social distancing and if required, staff could limit pieces of equipment used to provide 
additional space for social distancing.  Several departments received COVID-19 modifications to their 
office areas to limit face to face contact with employees and the general public.  Citizens are able to 
utilize online services – website, online payment, email, and telephone to limit visiting County 
facilities.  All County personnel would be required to wear masks in public areas and while having 
face to face contact with citizens.  Signs would be placed in all County buildings encouraging the 
public to wear masks and be vaccinated with a bar code directing individuals to the current NCDHHS 
guidelines.  Future meetings of the Board of Commissioners and County affiliated Boards and 
Commissions would continue to meet in-person and adhere to the North Carolina Open Meetings Law.  
 
The proposed State of Emergency provides a solid baseline and allows flexibility for County 
Departments to determine if additional protocols and measures are required.  
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board regarding the proposed State of Emergency.   

081721 BCC Meeting

15



 
 
 

DECLARATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY  
 

WHEREAS, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) has mutated with the variants more 
virulent causing rapid rises in cases and placing pressure on the local healthcare system; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a result of the above-described emergency, it has been determined that 

there is an imminent threat of, or existing conditions have caused or will cause, widespread or 
severe damage, injury, or loss of life or property, and public safety authorities may be unable to 
maintain public order or afford adequate protection for lives or property; and 

 
WHEREAS, declaring a State of Emergency and imposing the restrictions and 

prohibitions ordered herein is necessary to maintain order and protect public health, safety, and 
welfare, and to secure property. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to the authority vested in me as the Chairman of the 
Board of Commissioners of Watauga County under Article 1A of Chapter 166A of the North 
Carolina General Statutes and the Watauga County Code of Ordinances: 

 
Section 1. A State of Emergency is hereby declared within Watauga County as more 

particularly described in Section 2. 
 
Section 2.  The emergency area covered by this state of emergency shall be (check box):  

 
☒   All areas within the jurisdiction of Watauga County 
        
☐  The following specific areas within the jurisdiction of _____________________:    

_____________________________________________________________ 
 

Section 3. The following restrictions and prohibitions are imposed: 
 

☐ Evacuation:            
              
 
☐ Curfew:            
              
 
☐ Restricted Access:           
              
 

081721 BCC Meeting

16



 

2 
 

☒ Business Operations: Private businesses are highly encouraged to follow current NC  
Department of Health and Human Services guidance.      
              
 
☐ Alcohol:            
              
 
☐ Dangerous Weapons & Gasoline (Except for lawfully possessed firearms and 
ammunition):            
              
 
☒ Other:  Face coverings are highly encouraged in all County buildings and shall be   
required in  areas where space or operations require close contact. Additional restrictions  
shall be enforced as imposed by the Governor of North Carolina by Executive Order 117 and 
subsequent Executive Orders as applicable.        
 
☐ No restrictions or prohibitions are imposed at this time. 

 
Section 4. I hereby order all Watauga County Sheriff’s Office law enforcement officers 

and employees, and all other emergency management personnel subject to our control to 
cooperate in the enforcement and implementation of the provisions of this Declaration, all 
applicable local ordinances, state and federal laws, and the Watauga County Emergency 
Operations Plan. 
 

Section 5. I hereby order this declaration: (a) to be distributed to the news media and 
other organizations calculated to bring its contents to the attention of the general public; (b) to be 
filed with Clerk to the County Commissioners; and (c) to be distributed to others as necessary to 
ensure proper implementation of this declaration. 
 

Section 6. This declaration shall take effect on August 18th, 2021 at 5:00 PM and shall 
remain in effect until modified or rescinded. 
 

DECLARED this the August 17th, 2021 at 6:00 PM 
 
 
 
 

________________________________________________ 
                                                           John Welch 

                               Chairman, Watauga County Commissioners 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

17



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

18



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

WATER STREET PARKING PRESENTATION 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Bill Dixon, Appalachian Architecture, will present three (3) options for the Water Street 
parking area.  The Board previously authorized a contract to provide limited renderings and cost 
estimates for parking at the Water Street location.    
 
Option 1 is the least expensive at a cost of $384,560 for a total of 63 parking spaces including the 
Ginn lot.  The current parking spaces in the Ginn lot do not actually reflect the actual useable 
number of spaces.  Option 1 would create 36 new spaces and reduce the Ginn lot from 47 spaces 
to 27 actual useable spaces.  The reduction in spaces would allow for properly dimensionalized 
spaces, adequate ingress and egress lanes, and snow removal space.   
 
Option 2 creates a parking table over the Water Street parking area and connects to the Ginn lot.  
The cost is $1,776,060 and provides a total of 87 parking spaces.  29 spaces would be created on 
the Water Street lot with the reduction in spaces from Option 1 due to the structural supports for 
the upper level deck.  The upper level would have 58 spaces. 
 
Option 3 is the most expensive option but provides the most parking spaces of 139 at a cost of 
$5,033,600.  This option requires the removal of the soil from the Ginn lot. 
 
Options 2 and 3 would require the parking structures to meet the Town of Boone regulations.  Staff 
is reviewing Options 1 and 2 to determine if they could be paid for in the current fiscal year budget.  
Option 3 would require potential financing. 
 
Staff requests Board direction on the desire to proceed forward with one of the options or none.  
Should the Board wish to proceed forward, Mr. Dixon will bring a contract for design and 
construction documents at a future meeting.   
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

19



CERT. NO.

AL

ANI

ET

N.C.

D
AA

LORACHTRO
BOON E,

N

RE
GI

ST
ER

EL
AP

P
A 50893

RC
NA

HI

C

HITECTUR
IHCRA

CO E
,

R
RPORATION

A
.

P
.

UTC

RE ARD
E

N

L

O

T

B O

N
O

R

LI
W

R
EG

IS
T

C.
N.N E,

J

OH RCA
LI

AN

C

ET C
T

IH ,
.R

MMAI

DXA
OXI

081721 BCC Meeting

20

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3286'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3266'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
828 265 2405

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE, NC 28607

AutoCAD SHX Text
703 W. KING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX: 828 265 2406

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BILL DIXON, NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEBSITE: WWW.APPALARCH.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 201

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN OPTION #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWATAUGA COUNTY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/17/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING CONDITIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OPTION #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 27 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 36 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 63 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SURFACE PARKING LOT ON WATER STREET - (ONE WAY) /

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET PARKING IMPROVEMENTS COMPLIANT WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOWN OF BOONE ZONING ORDINANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 47 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
=  0 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 47 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURRENT QUEEN STREET PARKING LOT DOES NOT COMPLY WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
REQUIREMENTS OF THE TOWN OF BOONE ZONING ORDINANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Option 1 - Preliminary Costs Estimate       New surface parking lot on Water Street / Improvements to the Queen Street surface parking lot Water Street Surface Parking Lot - 36 parking spaces        $ 199,000.  36 parking spaces        $ 199,000. $ 199,000. Demolition - removal of excess dirt, existing stairs, sidewalk, curb & gutter Storm Drainage & detention system New concrete sidewalk along Water Street, stairs and curbing Final grading and backfill Gravel base/heavy duty asphalt paving and striping Landscaping per TOB standards        10% contingency                $  19,900. $  19,900. Subtotal                  $ 218,900. $ 218,900. 15% professional fees-Survey, Testing, Architectural & Engineering fees, Site lighting,   $ 32,835 $ 32,835 landscaping design, Certifications, etc.              SUBTOTAL                 $ 251,735. $ 251,735. $251,735 / 36 parking spaces = $6,993 per space Queen Street surface Parking Lot - 27 parking spaces        $105,000.  27 parking spaces        $105,000. $105,000. Demolition - removal of asphalt, existing stairs, sidewalk, curb & gutter Storm Drainage repairs New concrete sidewalk along alley, curb & gutter Final grading and backfill Repaving and striping Landscaping per TOB standards         10% contingency                $  10,500. $  10,500. Subtotal                  $ 115,500. $ 115,500. 15% professional fees-Survey, Testing, Architectural & Engineering fees, Site lighting,   $  17,325. $  17,325. landscaping design, Certifications, etc.              SUBTOTAL                 $ 132,825. $ 132,825. $132,825. / 27 parking spaces = $4,920 per space TOTAL $ 384,560 / 63 PARKING SPACES = $6,104 AVERAGE PRICE PER SPACE 384,560 / 63 PARKING SPACES = $6,104 AVERAGE PRICE PER SPACE Exemptions: General statutes state that County surface parking lots are required to meet the local jurisdiction's erosion control and storm water requirements but are exempt from meeting the Town's general Zoning requirements. are exempt from meeting the Town's general Zoning requirements. Nevertheless, the Town has requested that their zoning standards be followed. In the spirit of cooperation between County and Town, the proposed options meet the Town's zoning standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXISTING WATER STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UEXISTING QUEEN STREET LOT



CERT. NO.

AL

ANI

ET

N.C.

D
AA

LORACHTRO
BOON E,

N

RE
GI

ST
ER

EL
AP

P
A 50893

RC
NA

HI

C

HITECTUR
IHCRA

CO E
,

R
RPORATION

A
.

P
.

UTC

RE ARD
E

N

L

O

T

B O

N
O

R

LI
W

R
EG

IS
T

C.
N.N E,

J

OH RCA
LI

AN

C

ET C
T

IH ,
.R

MMAI

DXA
OXI

ç

081721 BCC Meeting

21

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3286'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3266'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
828 265 2405

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE, NC 28607

AutoCAD SHX Text
703 W. KING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX: 828 265 2406

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BILL DIXON, NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEBSITE: WWW.APPALARCH.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 201

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN OPTION #2

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWATAUGA COUNTY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/17/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OPTION #2 - LOWER LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LOT + DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 58 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 29 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 87 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SURFACE PARKING LOT ON WATER STREET WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW PARKING DECK ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OPTION #2 - UPPER LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LOT + DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 58 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 29 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 87 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW SURFACE PARKING LOT ON WATER STREET WITH

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW PARKING DECK ABOVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Option 2 - Preliminary Costs Estimate       New two-level parking deck structure on Water Street w/ Upper-level deck connecting to surface parking lot on Queen Street.   Water Street Surface Parking Lot               $ 199,000. $ 199,000. Includes all work proposed in Option 1- replace pavement w/ concrete        $  50,000. $  50,000. Existing segmented block retaining wall to remain in place. Upper deck level - Raised CIP/Precast concrete parking deck structure        $ 900,000.  - Raised CIP/Precast concrete parking deck structure        $ 900,000. $ 900,000. Tilted to match the existing grades at Queen Street surface parking Bridging between upper level deck structure & Queen Street surface parking lot     $  50,000. $  50,000. Brick Façade on Water St. w/ new enclosed stair            $ 100,000. ade on Water St. w/ new enclosed stair            $ 100,000. $ 100,000. Partial facades on Queen Street and Building elevation facing South (King Street) Queen Street surface parking lot                $ 105,000.                 $ 105,000. $ 105,000. Includes all work proposed in Option 1                  Subtotal                           $ 1,404,000.                   $ 1,404,000. $ 1,404,000. 10% contingency                         $   140,400.                   $   140,400.  $   140,400.  Subtotal                          $ 1,544,400.                  $ 1,544,400. $ 1,544,400. 15% professional fees-Survey, Testing, Architectural & Engineering fees, Site lighting,              $   231,660.             $   231,660. $   231,660. landscaping design, Certifications, etc.        ___         ___         TOTAL                          $ 1,776.,060.                 $ 1,776.,060. $ 1,776.,060. $ 1,776,060 / 87 PARKING SPACES = $20,415 PER SPACE 1,776,060 / 87 PARKING SPACES = $20,415 PER SPACE Note: Parking structures are NOT exempt from meeting the Town's general Zoning requirements. Option 2  triggers the Town's Tiered Improvement requirements which include, among other items, that the County provide  a sidewalk along Queen Street and meet the site photometric lighting requirements. In the spirit of cooperation between County and Town, the proposed improvements to the Queen Street surface parking lot meet the Town's zoning standards.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-2



CERT. NO.

AL

ANI

ET

N.C.

D
AA

LORACHTRO
BOON E,

N

RE
GI

ST
ER

EL
AP

P
A 50893

RC
NA

HI

C

HITECTUR
IHCRA

CO E
,

R
RPORATION

A
.

P
.

UTC

RE ARD
E

N

L

O

T

B O

N
O

R

LI
W

R
EG

IS
T

C.
N.N E,

J

OH RCA
LI

AN

C

ET C
T

IH ,
.R

MMAI

DXA
OXI

·

·

·

081721 BCC Meeting

22

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3286'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
3266'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
828 265 2405

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE, NC 28607

AutoCAD SHX Text
703 W. KING ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FAX: 828 265 2406

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARCHITECTURE, PA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BILL DIXON, NCARB

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPALACHIAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV#:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY:

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEBSITE: WWW.APPALARCH.COM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUITE 201

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN OPTION #3

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UWATAUGA COUNTY PARKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH CAROLINA

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/17/21

AutoCAD SHX Text
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BD

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OPTION #3 - LOWER LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET DECK (UPPER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET DECK (LOWER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 68 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 71  SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 139 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW TWO-LEVEL PARKING DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPTUAL DESIGN OPTION #3 - UPPER LEVEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING:

AutoCAD SHX Text
QUEEN STREET DECK (UPPER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER STREET DECK (LOWER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 68 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 71  SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= 139 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW TWO-LEVEL PARKING DECK

AutoCAD SHX Text
Option 3 - Preliminary Costs Estimate    New two-level parking deck structure end to end Note: Parking structures are NOT exempt from meeting the Town's general Zoning requirements. Option 3  triggers the Town's Tiered Improvement requirements which include, among other items, that the County  provide a sidewalk along Queen Street and meet the site photometric lighting requirements.  Site demolition and excavation               $    50,000. $    50,000. Storm drainage                  $    35,000. $    35,000. Backfill                    $   100,000. $   100,000. Final grading                   $   175,000. $   175,000. Soil Nailing and/or Pile driving               $   150,000. $   150,000. Parking deck structure                  $ 3,650,000. $ 3,650,000. Subtotal                    $ 4,160,000.  $ 4,160,000.  10% Contingency                  $    416,000. $    416,000. Subtotal                    $ 4,576,000. $ 4,576,000. 10% professional fees-Survey, Testing, Architectural & Engineering fees, Site lighting,                   $    457,600.                  $    457,600. landscaping design, Certifications, etc.                 TOTAL                                $ 5,033,600.                              $ 5,033,600.                      $ 5,033,600. $ 5,033,600. $5,033,600. / 139 PARKING SPACES = $36,213 AVERAGE PRICE PER SPACE Notes: Costs estimates prepared by Bill Dixon, Architect and Alan Crees, PE in consultation with Mike Wilson, TOYHSMA. Sidewalk along Queen Street - The costs of options 2 & 3 would more than likely trigger the Town's Zoning Tiered  - The costs of options 2 & 3 would more than likely trigger the Town's Zoning Tiered Improvement System which would require the County to install a 5' wide sidewalk along Queen Street for the entire length of the property. The existing retaining wall and differential grades along the first section of Queen Street complicate the installation of sidewalk which might affect the costs.  To be determined. Lighting - Costs estimates assume that surface parking lighting will be provided by NRLP.   - Costs estimates assume that surface parking lighting will be provided by NRLP.  Assumptions- Average cost of $30K per parking space in a concrete parking deck structure - Average cost of $30K per parking space in a concrete parking deck structure was determined thru a variety of sources: Standard industry price indexes reflecting current construction costs Consultation with ASU's Design/Construction Department  Consultation with local general contractor familiar with parking deck construction 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=20'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
A-3



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDER # 3 FOR MIDDLE FORK GREENWAY  

MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, will request the Board approve Change Order 
#3 for the Middle Fork Greenway Section 4 project in the amount of $25,137.00. Additional 
unsuitable soils and drainage were discovered during construction.  Blue Ridge Conservancy will 
provide the funds for the Change Order. 
 
Board action is required to approve Change Order #3 in the amount of $25,137.00 with the funds 
to come from the Blue Ridge Conservancy. 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

23



081721 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Recognition of Steven Moody’s Award of the Order of the Long Leaf Pine Award 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will request the Board present to Steven Moody, retired 
Maintenance Mechanic Crew Chief, the Order of the Long Leaf Pine Award for his 33 years of 
service to the County and its citizens. 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

25



081721 BCC Meeting

26



081721 BCC Meeting

27



081721 BCC Meeting

28



081721 BCC Meeting

29



081721 BCC Meeting

30



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
B. Tractor Bid Award Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Marsh will request the Board award the bid for a 2021 4x4 compact tractor to Pennell & Sons 
in the amount of $20,519.  The tractor will be used for snow removal and landscaping at the 
Community Recreation Center.  Three (3) bids were received with Pennell & Sons being the lowest 
responsive bidder.  Adequate funds are available in the current Fiscal Year 2021-2022 budget. 
 
Board action is required.   
  

081721 BCC Meeting

31



081721 BCC Meeting

32



081721 BCC Meeting

33



081721 BCC Meeting

34



081721 BCC Meeting

35



081721 BCC Meeting

36



081721 BCC Meeting

37



081721 BC
C

 M
eeting38



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

ADDITIONAL AND REVISED ALLOCATION OF FY 2021 HOME & COMMUNITY CARE 
BLOCK GRANT (H&CCBG) FUNDS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, will request the Board revise the original 
allocation of the Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) approved June 1, 2021.   
 
Ms. Angie Boitnotte, Project on Aging Director, will request the Board revise the original 
allocation of the Home and Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) approved June 1, 2021.   
The FY 21 allocation was $293,576, which required a local match of $32,619.  The Project on 
Aging received additional H&CCBG funds with the final allocation of $307,546 (+$13,970) which 
required a local match of $34,172 (+$1,553).  The local match is present in the current budget.     
 
Board action is required to approve the revised Home and Community Care Block Grant 
(H&CCBG) as presented in the packet.   
 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

39



       Watauga County Project on Aging 
                  132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A ●  Boone, North Carolina 28607 
                                               Website:  www.wataugacounty.org/aging    angie.boitnotte@watgov.org 

        Telephone 828-265-8090   Fax 828-264-2060   TTY 1-800-735-2962     Voice 1-800-735-8262 or 711 
                                          

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: Deron Geouque, County Manager 
 
FROM: Angie Boitnotte, Director 
 
DATE: August 4, 2021 
 
SUBJ: Additional Funds and Revised Allocation of FY21 Home and Community Care Block 

Grant Funds 
 
The Home and Community Care Block Grant (HCCBG) allocation for FY21 was $293,576, 
which required a local match of $32,619.  The Project on Aging received additional HCCBG 
funds at the close of the fiscal year, due to other providers in the region having unspent funds.   
 
The final allocation was $307,546 (+$13,970) which required a local match of $34,172 
(+$1,553).   
 
The revised allocation is as follows: 

HCCBG Service      HCCBG Allocation   Match   
In-Home Aide Level I    $87,221               $9,691 
In-Home Aide Level II   $63,105    $7,012 
Congregate Meals (drive-thru)             $39,469    $4,385  
Congregate Meals (dining room)    $3,056       $340 
Home Delivered Meals            $109,546             $12,172 
Transportation       $5,149       $572 
   
 
I plan to be present for discussion or questions. 
 
 
 
cc: Karin Bare, Administrative Assistant II 

081721 BCC Meeting

40



NAME AND ADDRESS Home and Community Care Block Grant for Older Adults
COMMUNITY SERVICE PROVIDER DAAS-732
WATAUGA PROJECT ON AGING      County Funding Plan WATAUGA COUNTY
132-A POPLAR GROVE CONNECTOR July 1, 2020  through June 30, 2021
BOONE, NC 28607                        Provider Services Summary  FY21 FINAL REVISION, DATE : 7/20/21

                 A B C D E F G H I
Ser. Delivery Projected Projected Projected Projected 

(Check One) Block Grant Funding Required Net* NSIP Total HCCBG Reimburse. HCCBG Total 
Services Direct Purch. Access In-Home Other Total Local Match Serv Cost Subsidy Funding Units Rate Clients Units

Transportation (250) X 5149 5149 572 5721 5721 592 9.7311 21 592

Congregate (180) X 3056 3056 340 3396 378 3774 504 7.2447 76 504

Home Delivered Meals (020) X 109546 109546 12172 121718 11003 132721 14671 8.9793 125 14671

Congregate (185) X 39469 39469 4385 43854 4655 48510 6207 7.2382 127 6207

In-Home Aide Level I (041) X 87221 87221 9691 96912 96912 4056 24.3973 102 4056

In-Home Aide Level II (042) X 63105 63105 7012 70117 70117 2735 26.0179 41 2735

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0

Total \\\\\\\\\\\\\\ 5149 150326 152071 307546 34172 341718 16037 357754 28765 \\\\\\\\\\\\ 492 28765

*Adult Day Care & Adult Day Health Care Net Service Cost
ADC ADHC Certification of required minimum local match availability.

Daily Care Required local match will be expended simultaneously Authorized Signature, Title Date
Administrative with Block Grant Funding. Community Service Provider
Net Ser. Cost  Total

Signature, County Finance Officer                           Date Signature, Chairman, Board of Commissioners Date

081721 BCC Meeting

41



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

42



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

TAX MONTHLY COLLECTIONS REPORT 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 

Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

43



081721 BCC Meeting

44



AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Misty Watson, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

45



MEMORANDUM

TO: Deron T. Geouque, County Manager
FROM: Misty Watson, Finance Director
SUBJECT: Budget Amendments 
DATE:

Description Debit Credit

313839 395123 Fines and Forfeitures 210,000             
315911 463200 Watauga County Board of Education 210,000             

323341 395124 Deeds of Trust  - permits and fees 72,000               
324180 463210 Distributions to State of N.C. 72,000                

103200 326600 ABC bottle tax 2,152                  
105890 469848 Blue Ridge Mediation - ABC funds 2,152                  

To record additional bottle tax funds received.

The Register of Deeds office collects fees for filing a deed of trust or mortgage document. A portion of these fees are 
remitted monthly to the State of North Carolina and are required to be budgeted.

NC GS 115C-452 requires all fines and forfeitures collected by the state court system and local governments be remitted 
to counties and apportioned to the school district and budgeted.  

WATAUGA COUNTY
FINANCE OFFICE

814 West King St., Suite 216, Boone, NC  28607     Phone (828) 265-8007

August 6, 2021

The following budget amendment requires the approval of the Watauga County Board of Commissioners. Board
approval is requested. 

Account #

081721 BCC Meeting

46



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Watauga County Broadband Initiative 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the August 3, 2021 meeting, the Board tabled action until the August 17, 2021 meeting for staff 
to provide possible projects regarding the American Recovery Plan (ARP) funding.  Staff has 
compiled a list of potential projects listed below.   
 
Project    Estimated Cost   Balance of ARP Funding 
                        Beginning Total - $10,911,724 
Detention Facility- Unbudgeted 
  COVID19 Expenses     $50,000     $10,861,724 
Broadband Initiative    $7,000,000      $  3,861,724 
Kill/Chill Facility    $500,000     $  3,361,724 
Valle Crucis Elementary School 
  Water/Sewer/Stormwater  $2,145,000     $  1,216,724 
Workforce Housing    ??? 
 
Outside Agency Requests   
 
OASIS – 1 Time Mortgage Relief $50,000 
Children’s Council –  
  Reoccurring Services   $100,000 
Club Twelve 
  Initial     $5,000    
  Reoccurring Services  $5,000 to $10,000 
 
Following the August 3, 2021 meeting, staff requested BREMCO and Skyline to reduce the cost 
of the Broadband Initiative project or increase individuals served at no additional cost.  Also, staff 
requested a cost estimate to serve the remaining 5% that would not be serviced by this agreement.  
They will be present to provide additional information.     
 
Summary from Previous Meeting 
Several areas of the county have been identified as underserved when it comes to broadband 
services through citizen contacts, petitions, surveys, and federal and state data.  The current 
pandemic has amplified the lack of broadband services in areas throughout the county. The goal 
is to close the digital divide in our county and allow access to digital commerce, telehealth, online 
education, and digital media for our citizens. 
 
The current proposal would build approximately seventy-five (75) miles of trunk fiber by Blue 
Ridge Energy and SkyLine/SkyBest to provide seventy-eight (78) miles of distribution fiber for 

081721 BCC Meeting

47



approximately 1,565 homes to access.  The project would consist of four phases and be constructed 
over a two and half (2.5) year process.  The four phases would be as followed: 
 

• Phase 1 – Triplett/Powder Horn - would provide the largest amount of access to homes 
(503) and territory.  29 miles of fiber built. 

• Phase 2 – Wildcat/Stoney Fork – access for 310 homes.  20 miles of fiber built. 
• Phase 3 – Blackberry/Sampson -access for 252 homes.  16 miles of fiber built.   
• Phase 4 – Howard’s Creek/Ray Brown/Raven Rock – access for 500 homes.  10 miles 

of fiber built.   
 
The project would utilize the American Rescue Plan Act of 2021 (ARP) funds.  The estimated cost 
is $7 million dollars.  The county received $10,911,724.00 in ARP funding.  A small amount of 
funding has been utilized to cover unbudgeted COVID19 expenses related to the detention facility.  
County staff is continuing to review and develop projects for the ARP funding.  Broadband is one 
of the projects that has been identified as high priority especially in lieu of the pandemic and the 
need for remote learning and work.  The project would increase the footprint of broadband 
services, address several of the underserved areas, and lay the groundwork for future expansion.  
An additional benefit of the project is that staff has requested a set aside of fiber for future county 
buildings or emergency communication towers or equipment located along the expansion.     
 
One option for the Board would be to authorize the broadband project due to the time frame and 
delay a decision on the rest of the funds until further information and direction can be determined.   
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

48



Watauga County 
Broadband 
Initiative

Blue Ridge Energy
SkyLine/SkyBest

Brad Shields
Chief Technology Officer
Blue Ridge Energy

Chief Operating Officer
RidgeLink, LLC

081721 BCC Meeting

49



The Cooperative Difference

• RidgeLink and SkyBest Communications are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of local member-owned 
cooperatives

• Providing excellent member service to this region for a 
combined 155 years 
• - Blue Ridge Energy since 1936
• - SkyLine Membership Corp. since 1961

• Top regional employers with dedicated local staff
• Demonstrated commitment to community through 

grants to improve local quality of life, scholarships and 
economic development support

081721 BCC Meeting

50



Fiber Optic Business

• Providing fiber optic service since 
2001

• 570 miles of high count fiber optic 
trunk routes

• Currently deploying broadband 
with SkyBest in Caldwell County 
as part of the NC GREAT Grant.

081721 BCC Meeting

51



Watauga Broadband Advantages

Great economic growth 
opportunity

County will receive 12 
fibers on the trunk route 
to expand Emergency 
Management 
opportunities

Laying the infrastructure 
for future growth

Providing an opportunity 
for competition in areas 
with no competition

081721 BCC Meeting

52



Broadband 
Deployment
(Underserved 
Areas) 

Blue Ridge Energy will provide the trunk fiber (highway)

SkyLine/SkyBest will provide the distribution fiber and 
fiber to the home solutions.

Phased approach for underserved citizens (members)

3 years of construction

75 miles of Blue Ridge fiber and 1565 homes touched

Attorney recommendation and sample contract pending

081721 BCC Meeting

53



Phased 
Approach

Phase 1 – Triplett/Powder Horn – the largest 
area serving the most homes – 29 miles of fiber 
construction, 503 homes

Phase 2 – Wildcat/Stoney Fork – 20 miles of 
fiber construction, 310 homes 

Phase 3 – Blackberry/Sampson - 16 miles of 
fiber, 252 homes 

Phase 4 – Howard’s Creek, Ray Brown, Raven 
Rock – 10 miles of fiber, 500 homes 

081721 BCC Meeting

54



Construction Challenges
• Completing in the timeframe needed

• Would like a decision by the end of 
September, 2021

• Blue Ridge Parkway Crossings:
• Holloway Mountain Road
• Aho Road
• Blackberry Road
• Elk Creek Road

• Material availability – fiber optic 
cable and hardware – 50 weeks 
backorder on some products

081721 BCC Meeting

55



Watauga County Broadband 
Expansion

August 2021
By: Robbie Farmer

081721 BCC Meeting

56



Our Company
 ILEC established in 1951. Celebrating our 70th year.
 Largest of eight telephone cooperatives in North Carolina. 
 13 exchanges serving over 30,000 access lines and over 26,000 Internet 

subscribers.
 Serves five counties in Northwestern North Carolina and Eastern Tennessee.
 840 square mile service area.
 Just over 130 employees.
 SkyBest Communications: Established in 1998 as the Competitive arm (CLEC) of 

our company. Began offering service in Boone in 2008.
 Committed to broadband - More than 26,000 Internet customers today and over 

20,000 customers served with fiber today. 
 Our Mission is to provide state of the art communications and technology 

solutions enabled by a culture of excellence in customer service.

081721 BCC Meeting

57



Our Network
• Staff dedicated to creating the area’s best subscriber network so that our customers 

communications are reliable and secure.
• Viewed as a pioneer and leader in this space - we’ve invested over $200 million in our network 

with more than 2,500 miles of fiber in service.
• We began placing fiber in our network over 35 years ago and have the most extensive customer-

facing fiber network in the high country.
• More than 98 percent of our service area is covered by fiber facilities. This gives us tremendous 

power and flexibility in what we can offer our customers while making a positive impact on our 
local economy – increasing home values and providing local businesses with powerful 
connectivity.

• Our facilities include 13 Central Offices – Five in Ashe County, Three in Alleghany, Two in Watauga, 
Two in Avery and one in Shady Valley.

• Over 160 remotes hanging off of these Central Offices that push our services closer to our 
customers.

• All of our CO’s and Remotes reside on intelligent self-healing fiber optic rings. 

081721 BCC Meeting

58



Interesting Statistics
• Over 30,000 customers.
• Over 26,000 Internet customers.
• Over 22,000 operational ONT’s.
• Over 10,000 video customers.
• Over 300 video channels.
• Well over 160 sites (CO’s, Remotes, Cell Sites, etc.).
• Spread across 5 counties.
• Supported and maintained by 1 local team.
• Finished 2020 with a NPS of 84 well above the industry average of 24

081721 BCC Meeting

59



Recent Fiber Builds in Underserved Areas of 
Watauga County
• Walter Nielson / Big Hill
• Howard’s Creek
• Highway 194
• Timber Lakes Drive
• River Road
• Winkler Creek
• Castle Ford Remote

081721 BCC Meeting

60



Project Highlights

• 78 Miles of Construction
• 4 Remote Equipment Buildings
• 3 Remote Electronic Shelves
• 8 Field Cabinets
• 939 Projected Service Drops and Installations

081721 BCC Meeting

61



Service Offerings

• Symmetrical Broadband Internet 
• Speeds up to 1 Gbps, that’s 1,000 Mbps of download & upload

• Local and Long Distance Voice Service
• With a full suite of premium calling features available 

• IPTV Television Services with Competitive Lineups
• Full streaming options available for those looking to “cut the cord”

• Security and Surveillance Systems
• FREE onsite consultation 

081721 BCC Meeting

62



Project Challenges

• A significant portion of the distribution will be on private roadways. 
POA and/or individual property owner permissions will be required.

• Material Lead Times
• Fiber Optic Cable – 26 to 52 Weeks
• Remote Electronics – 18 Weeks
• Home Electronics – 50 Weeks
• Fiber Optic Pedestals – 35 Weeks

081721 BCC Meeting

63



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

64



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Boards and Commissions  

 
Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission 
The Valle Crucis Historic Preservation Commission terms begin and expire during the month of 
September.  There is an expiring term this September, 2021.  Erin Welsh’s three-year term expires.  
She would like to continue to serve and requests to be reappointed.  This is a first reading. 
 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

65



Blank Page 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

66



AGENDA ITEM 13: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Announcements 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The High Country Council of Governments’ 46th Annual Banquet is scheduled for Friday, 
September 10, 2021, at Linville Ridge.  Please let Anita know if you plan attend prior to the RSVP 
deadline of August 27, 2021. 
 
  

081721 BCC Meeting

67



081721 BCC Meeting

68



AGENDA ITEM 15: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 16: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 17: 

CLOSED SESSION 
Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 
 
 

081721 BCC Meeting

69


	Tentative Agenda and Meeting Notice
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the August 17, 2021, Agenda
	Public Hearing to Allow Citizen Comment on the Consideration of Submitting A Grant Application for Building Reuse Funds from the NC Department of Commerce to Provide Funds to Loan To “Project Checkout”
	Coronavirus (COVID-19) Community Update
	State of Emergency (SOE) Discussion
	Water Street Parking Presentation
	Proposed Change Order # 3 for Middle Fork Greenway
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Recognition of Steven Moody's Award of the Order of the Long Leaf Pine Award
	B.  Tractor Bid Award Request

	Additional and Revised Allocation of FY 2021 Home & Community Care Block Grant (H&CCBG) Funds
	Tax Monthly Collections Report
	Budget Amendments
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  Watauga County Broadband Initiative
	B.  Boards and Commissions
	C.  Announcements

	Public Comment
	Break
	Closed Session



